
 

Page 1 of 2 
 

 
       REGULAR MEETING 

      December 12, 2023 
    AGENDA 

 
PUBLIC NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Colfax County Board of 
Commissioners will meet in Regular Session on Tuesday, December 12, 
2023, at 9:00 A.M., in the Commission Chambers, 3rd Floor at the Colfax 
County Building, Raton, NM for the following: 

 
This agenda can be viewed at the Colfax County Website at  
www.co.colfax.nm.us 

 
 

1. Call to Order 
2. Pledge of Allegiance 
3. Salute to the New Mexico Flag 
4. Approve Agenda 
5. Approve Special Meeting Minutes for November 14, 2023, Public Hearing 

Meeting Minutes for November 14, 2023, Regular Meeting Minutes for 
November 14, 2023, and Special Meeting Minutes for November 21, 2023,  

6. Recognize Visitors 
7. Public Comment 
8. Discuss/Action – Update YES Program, Debbie Ortiz 
9. Discuss/Action – Update DWI Program, Ambrosia Trujillo 
10. Discuss/Action – Professional Service Contract Between Colfax County 

DWI Program and Concha Montano, Montano Concha Consulting  
11. Discuss/Action – Approve Expenditures  
12. Discuss/Action - Approve Expenditures Pursuant to Resolution #2022-49 
13. Discuss/Action – Indigent Care Claims 
14. Discuss/Action – Memorandum of Agreement Between Colfax County and 

The Greater Raton Economic Development Cooperation Doing Business as 
GrowRaton 

15. Discuss/Action – Approval of the 2024 Colfax County Holiday Schedule 
16. Discuss/Action – Ordinance 2023-02, An Ordinance Regulating the Siting 

and Permitting of Wireless Telecommunication Facilities 
17. Discuss/Action – Resolution 2023-41, Small Wireless Facility Design 

Guidelines  
18. Discuss/Action – Resolution 2023-42, Fees for Wireless Telecommunication 

Facilities  
 

http://www.co.colfax.nm.us/


 

Page 2 of 2 
 

 
 
 

19. Discuss/Action – Resolution 2023-43, A Resolution in the Matter of 
Repealing Resolution #’s 2022-11 and 2017-27 and Dissolving the Advisory 
Committee for The Colfax County Airport @ Angel Fire 

20. Discuss/Action – Ports to Plains Alliance 2024 Membership Dues 
21. Discuss/Action Amendment to Addendum 1, Vigil Maldonado Detention 

Center Detainee Handbook 
22. Discuss/Action – Amendment to Programs & Services Policy, Vigil 

Maldonado Detention Center 
23. Discuss/Action – Salary Increase, Vigil Maldonado Detention Center 
24. Discuss/Action – Approval of Lieutenant Job Description, Colfax County 

Sheriff’s Office 
25. Discuss/Action – State of NM Office of the State Engineer Fund A21F2992 

Capital Appropriation Project Amendment No. 01 
26. Discuss/Action – Award RFB #2023-06, Chicorica Low Water Crossing 
27. Discuss/Action – Task Order No. 2, Molzen-Corbin & Engineering Services, 

Airfield Lighting Rehab 
28. Discuss/Action – Task Order No. 3, Molzen-Corbin Engineering Services, 

Aircraft Hanger Design and Construction Administration  
29. Closed Session Pursuant to NMSA 1978 10-15-1H (2), Limited Personnel 

Matters, Colfax County Manager Evaluation 
30. Discuss/Action - Open Session Pursuant to NMSA 1978 10-15-1H (2), 

Limited Personnel Matters, Colfax County Manager Evaluation 
31. Managers’ Docket 
32. Commissioners’ Docket 
33. Adjourn 

 
 

                   Done this 5th day of December 2023 
 

 
Salute to the New Mexico Flag – “I salute the flag of the State of New Mexico 

and the Zia Symbol of perfect friendship among united cultures”. 



























1 

STATE OF NEW MEXICO 
OFFICE OF THE STATE ENGINEER 

FUND A21F2292 CAPITAL APPROPRIATION PROJECT 
AMENDMENT NO. 01 

 
Grantee: Colfax County 
Grant Agreement #: A21F2292  
 
CAPITAL APPROPRIATION PROJECT AGREEMENT, ARTICLE VIII: 
 
ARTICLE VIII.  REPORTS  
(CURRENT) 
 

A. Database Reporting  
The Grantee shall report monthly Project activity by entering such Project information as the 

Department and the Department of Finance and Administration may require, such information entered 
directly into a database maintained by the Department of Finance and Administration 
(http://cpms.dfa.state.nm.us). Additionally, the Grantee shall certify on the Request for Payment form 
(Exhibit 1) that updates have been maintained and are current in the database. The Grantee hereby 
acknowledges that failure to perform and/or certify updates into the database will delay or potentially 
jeopardize the reimbursement of funds. The Department shall give Grantee a minimum of thirty (30) 
days’ advance written notice of any changes to the information the Grantee is required to report.  

 
Monthly reports shall be due on the last day of each month, beginning with the first full month following 
execution of this Agreement by the Department and ending upon the submission of the final request for 
reimbursement for the Project. 
 
CAPITAL APPROPRIATION PROJECT AGREEMENT, ARTICLE VIII IS AMENDED AS 
FOLLOWS: 
 
ARTICLE VIII.  REPORTS  
(AMENDED) 
 

A. Database Reporting  
The Grantee shall report quarterly Project activity by entering such Project information as the 

Department and the Department of Finance and Administration may require, such information entered 
directly into a database maintained by the Department of Finance and Administration (Budget & 
Formulation Management System). Additionally, the Grantee shall certify on the Request for Payment 
form (Exhibit 1) that updates have been maintained and are current in the database. The Grantee hereby 
acknowledges that failure to perform and/or certify updates into the database will delay or potentially 
jeopardize the reimbursement of funds. The Department shall give Grantee a minimum of thirty (30) 
days’ advance written notice of any changes to the information the Grantee is required to report.  

 
Quarterly reports shall be due on the last day of the month that is 30 days prior to the end of the 

quarter following execution of this Agreement by the Department and ending during the quarter of the 
submission of the final request for reimbursement for the Project, or the following quarter. 



2 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties do hereby execute this Amendment. 
 
THIS AMENDMENT has been approved by: 
 
GRANTEE 
 
____________________________________________                         ___________________ 
Chief Elected Official/Authorized Signatory                     Date                                               
     
(Type or Print Name) 
 
        
 
OFFICE OF THE STATE ENGINEER 
 
 
             
Division Director or Designee            Date 
 
State Engineer 
 
Mike A. Hamman, P.E.      



























































































MEMBERSHIP 
& INVESTMENT 
OPPORTUNITIES
B E C A U S E  E C O N O M I C  D E V E L O P M E N T  
F O L L O W S  T R A N S P O R T A T I O N



 

Ports-to-Plains Alliance               PO Box 16226               Lubbock, Texas 79490               806-790-7196 

MEMBERSHIP OPPORTUNITIES 
 
CITY AND COUNTY MEMBERSHIPS 
 
Cities: Membership dues calculated at $.61 per capita based on current census  
Counties: Membership dues calculated at $.10 per capita based on current census 
 

• Eligible for election on Ports-to-Plains Alliance Board of Directors  
• Participation in all Policy Development, Events and Organization Activities 
• Invitation to join us at our annual Washington DC Fly-in to meet with federal legislators 
• One year of regular Membership including general listing and interactive map on 

www.portstoplains.com 
• Membership registration rate for all representatives to all Ports-to-Plains Events 
• Subscription to Ports-to-Plains newsletter, updates and action alerts 

 
CHAMBERS OF COMMERCE, ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT ORGANIZATIONS, COLLEGE 

AND UNIVERSITY MEMBERSHIPS 
 
$500 (International Organizations) 
$250 (U.S. Organizations) 
 

• Participation in all Policy Development, Events and Organization Activities 
• Invitation to join us at our annual Washington DC Fly-in to meet with federal legislators 
• One year of regular Membership including general listing and interactive map on 

www.portstoplains.com 
• Invitation to join us at our annual Washington DC Fly-in to meet with federal legislators 
• Membership registration rate for all representatives to Ports-to-Plains Alliance Annual 

Conference 
• Subscription to Ports-to-Plains newsletter, updates and action alerts 

 
INDIVIDUAL MEMBERSHIPS 
 
Individual Annual Membership $100  

• Participation in all Policy Development, Events and Organization Activities 
• Invitation to join us at our annual Washington DC Fly-in to meet with federal legislators 
• Subscription to Ports-to-Plains newsletter, updates and action alerts 

 
BUSINESS INVESTOR OPPORTUNITIES 
 
Ports-to-Plains is extending an invitation for Businesses to become a member of the Alliance. The focus 
of Ports-to-Plains Alliance is on the economic and business interests that are the lifeblood of the region 
and is dedicated to helping businesses thrive. Providing a safer and more efficient transportation system 
is key to business success and provides more opportunities for growth resulting in greater prosperity.  

http://www.portstoplains.com/
http://www.portstoplains.com/


 

Ports-to-Plains Alliance               PO Box 16226               Lubbock, Texas 79490               806-790-7196 

Ports-to-Plains members are crucial to the ongoing success of the Alliance. Business members will 
demonstrate support for Ports-to-Plains all while receiving a return on their investment from the benefits 
through membership. 
 
Over the past decade and a half, Ports-to-Plains Alliance members have seen billions in federal and state 
funding for road improvements in the Ports-to-Plains region. Expanding existing two-lane highways to 
four-lane or better will provide a safer and more efficient transportation system to deliver goods and 
services throughout the corridor.  
 
As an investor in Ports-to-Plains Alliance - all businesses are assured we will advocate for the future of 
business in rural communities, as well as additional benefits below: 

 
• Adds your business support to the Ports-to-Plains advocacy efforts to develop the robust 

transportation infrastructure needed to support business and economic development 
• Membership listing and inclusion on interactive map on Ports-to-Plains Website with link to 

your business website 
• Opportunity to distribute promotional materials during Ports-to-Plains Alliance events 
• Opportunities with Ports-to-Plains social media outreach 
• Subscription to Ports-to-Plains newsletter, updates and action alerts 

 
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE MEMBERSHIP 
 
Associate Business Investor Annual Membership  
 

Number of Employees  1-15 $250 
Number of Employees 16+ $500 

 
Individual Associate Membership benefits, plus; 

• Membership registration rate to Ports-to-Plains Alliance Annual Conference 
 

PRESIDENT’S CIRCLE - $5,000 
 
Associate Business Investors benefits, plus; 

• $2,500 Event sponsorship and benefits for Ports-to-Plains Alliance Annual Conference 
including all benefits for Silver Level Sponsor 

• Home page logo placement on www.portstoplains.com    
 

CHAIRMAN’S CIRCLE - $10,000 
 
President’s Circle benefits, plus;  

• $5,000 Event Sponsorship for Ports-to-Plains Alliance Annual Conference including all 
benefits for Gold Level Sponsor 

• Panel or speaker placement at Annual Conference  
• One representative invited to be a member of the Ports-to-Plains Alliance Advisory Council 
• Opportunity to attend Ports-to-Plains Alliance quarterly board meetings.  

 
 

http://www.portstoplains.com/


 

Ports-to-Plains Alliance               PO Box 16226               Lubbock, Texas 79490               806-790-7196 

 
STATE TRUCKING ASSOCIATION OPPORTUNITIES 
 
Associate Annual Membership: $250  
 
Ports-to-Plains is extending an invitation for the State Trucking Associations within its Corridor region to 
become a member of the Ports-to-Plains Alliance.  These states include Texas, New Mexico, Oklahoma, 
Colorado, Nebraska, Wyoming, Kansas, South Dakota, North Dakota, and Montana.  
 
Over the past decade and a half, Ports-to-Plains Alliance members have seen billions in federal and state 
funding for road improvements in the Ports-to-Plains region. Expanding existing 2-lane highways to 4-
lane or better will provide a safer and more efficient transportation system to deliver goods and services 
throughout the corridor resulting in saving trucking companies time and money. According to the Ports-to-
Plains Corridor Development and Management Plan, 2000 hours per day of truck travel will be saved 
once the highways are expanded to four-lane or better.  
 
Ports-to-Plains is also aware of many issues facing our state trucking associations including permitting 
and harmonization of weight and size of commercial vehicles. By working together on these issues, we 
will be more effective in these efforts.  
  
As a member of the Ports-to-Plains Alliance, State Trucking Associations are assured we will continue to 
advocate on your behalf on common issues while providing additional membership benefits such as: 
 

• Adds your association’s support to the Ports-to-Plains advocacy efforts to develop the robust 
transportation infrastructure needed to provide safer and more efficient movement of goods 
and services 

• Membership listing and inclusion on interactive map on Ports-to-Plains Website with link to 
state Trucking Association website 

• Invitation to join us in our annual Washington DC Fly-in to meet with legislators 
• One complimentary registration to Annual Ports-to-Plains Alliance Conference  
• Opportunity to distribute promotional materials during meetings and events 
• Opportunities with Ports-to-Plains social media outreach 
• Inclusion of trucking association press releases in Ports-to-Plains newsletters 
• Subscription to Ports-to-Plains newsletter, updates and action alerts 
• Attendance at Annual Trucking Association Meeting by at least one Ports-to-Plains staff 

member subject to scheduling 
 



INVOICE 2560Ports-to-Plains Alliance
PO Box 16226
Lubbock, TX  79490

Phone: 806-777-4162

Colfax County
230 N. 3rd St.
Raton, NM 87740

Invoice #
Invoice Date
Invoice Due

2560
11/02/2023

Amount Due $ 1,238.00

Due Upon Receipt

Transactions

Description Amount

2024 Membership Dues $ 1,238.00

Total Amount $ 1,238.00

Amount Paid -$ 0.00

Amount Due $ 1,238.00

Please make checks payable to the Ports-to-Plains Alliance and send to address below. Credit cards are not accepted for membership dues.
Wire payments are accepted, please send email for bank information to Tina Scarborough @ tina.scarborough@portstoplains.com.

Ports-to-Plains Alliance
PO Box 16226
Lubbock TX 79490



 

Page 1 of 1 
 

 
Ports to Plains Alliance 2024 Membership Dues 

 
 
 

Approved in open meeting this 12th day of December 2023. 
 
 
 
 

COLFAX COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 
 
______________________________________________  
Si Trujillo, CHAIRMAN  
 
______________________________________________  
Mary Lou Kern, VICE-CHAIR  
 
______________________________________________  
Bret Wier, MEMBER  
 
 
 
 
ATTEST:  
_____________________________________________  

 Rayetta M. Trujillo, CLERK OF THE BOARD 
 























































































December 2023
INDIGENT REPORT

MEDICAID
PREVIOUSLY APPROVAL MEDICAL RATE MCMC OTHER MCMC OTHER Hospital Services

CASE# APPROVED DATE FACILITY CLAIM MCMC OTHER ($15,000 limit/year) ($7,500 limit/year) ($15,000 limit/year) ($7,500 limit/year)
MCMC 4,385.00

TOTALS $0.00
  

SUBMITTED FOR MEDICAL MEDICAID APPLICANT INCOME GUIDELINES REASON FOR
CASE# VMDC INITIAL APPROVAL FACILITY CLAIM RATE OTHER INCARCERATED LIMIT SATISFIED DENIAL

2023-25 11/6/2023 MCMC 4,385.00 Yes Yes

TOTALS 4,385.00

SHERIFF SUBMITTED FOR MEDICAL MEDICAID APPLICANT INCOME GUIDELINES REASON FOR
CASE# DETAINEE INITIAL APPROVAL FACILITY CLAIM  OTHER INCOME LIMIT SATISFIED DENIAL

TOTALS
 

SUBMITTED FOR MEDICAL MEDICAID APPLICANT INCOME GUIDELINES REASON FOR
CASE# NEW APPLICANTS INITIAL APPROVAL FACILITY CLAIM RATE OTHER INCOME LIMIT SATISFIED DENIAL

TOTALS

SUBMITTED FOR MEDICAL MEDICAID APPLICANT INCOME GUIDELINES REASON FOR
CASE# DENIED CLAIMS INITIAL APPROVAL FACILITY CLAIM RATE OTHER INCOME LIMIT SATISFIED DENIAL MCMC

THAT WAS REQUESTED
TOTALS TOTALS

CASE# CREMATION INITIAL APPROVAL FACILITY CLAIM RATE OTHER INCOME LIMIT SATISFIED DENIAL
2023-26 11/1/2023 Riverside Funeral Home 1,000.00 N/A N/A YES Riverside Funeral Home

$1,000.00
TOTALS $0.00 TOTALS $1,000.00

CREMATION

DENIED CLAIMS

Approved ClaimsPREVIOUS CLAIMS YTD APPROVALS

















































2. 'Contractor's" Contact Licen::.e and CR Information:

Concha Montano

Montano Concha Consulting

CONT ACT: Concha Montano

ADDRESS: PO Box 1275, Las Vegas, NM 87701

TELEPHONE NUMBER: (505) 239-9787

CRS: 02-168645-00-9

3. Compensation

a. The total amount payable to the "Contractor" under this Contract, including all applicable gross receipts 

taxes and expenses, shall not exceed $50.000.00. This amount shall be paid in monthly equal installments 

beginning on the date of contract award and ending on June 30, 2024 (For example, should contract begin 

December 2023 and end June 2024, payment that will be due monthly will be for a total of 7 months at a 

rate of$7,142.86 per month).

b. The Colfax County DWI Program shall pay to the "Contractor" in full payment for services satisfactorily 

performed to serve as the Lead Epidemiologist/Local Evaluator to create and implement a methodologically 

sound assessment process - (as set forth in Section 1 - Scope of Work). The "Contractor" is responsible 

for all hotel and travel expenses. The New Mexico Gross Receipts Tax levied on the amounts payable under 

this Contract shall be paid by the "Contractor". Payment shall be subject to the availability of funds pursuant 

to the Appropriations Paragraph set forth below and to any negotiations between the parties from year to 

year pursuant to Paragraph 1, Scope of Work, and to approval by LDWI/DFA.

c. The "Contractor" shall submit an invoice accounting for all services performed. If the Colfax County DWI 

Program finds that the services are not acceptable, within thirty (30) days after the date of receipt of written 

notice from the "Contractor" that payment is requested, it shall provide the "Contractor" a letter of exception 

explaining the defect or objection to the services, and outlining steps the "Contractor" may take to provide 

remedial action. Upon certification by Colfax County DWI Program that the services have been received 

and accepted, payment shall be tendered to the "Contractor" within thirty (30) days after the date of 

acceptance.

4. Term

This Contract shall become effective upon the date of the last signature. This Contract shall terminate on June 

30, 2024, unless terminated earlier pursuant to Paragraph 5, below. In accordance with NMSA 1978 Section 13-

1-150, no contract term for a professional services contract, including extensions and renewals, shall exceed 

four ( 4) years, except as set forth in NMSA 1978 Section 13-1-150.

5. Termination

a. This Contract may be terminated by either of the parties upon written notice delivered to the other party at 

least ten ( 10) days prior to the intended date of termination. By such termination, neither party may nullify

obligations already incurred for performance or failure to perform prior to the date of termination. 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, this Contract may be terminated immediately upon written notice to the 

3 












	December 12, 2023 Regular Meeting Agenda .pdf
	28. Task Order #3 Hangar.pdf
	27. Task Order #2 AIrfield Lighting.pdf
	25. State of NM Office State Engineer Fund A21F2992 Capital Appropriation Project Amendment No. 01.pdf
	Grantee: Colfax County
	CAPITAL APPROPRIATION PROJECT AGREEMENT, ARTICLE VIII:
	Monthly reports shall be due on the last day of each month, beginning with the first full month following execution of this Agreement by the Department and ending upon the submission of the final request for reimbursement for the Project.
	CAPITAL APPROPRIATION PROJECT AGREEMENT, ARTICLE VIII IS AMENDED AS FOLLOWS:
	GRANTEE
	OFFICE OF THE STATE ENGINEER

	24. Job Description.pdf
	23. Pay Increase for VMDC.pdf
	22. Programs and Services Policy.pdf
	21. Addendum 1 Detainee Handbook.pdf
	20.  Ports to Plains Alliance.pdf
	Binder1
	2023_Membership_and_Business_Investor_Opportunties_Red
	MEMBERSHIP OPPORTUNITIES
	City and County Memberships
	Cities: Membership dues calculated at $.61 per capita based on current census
	Chambers of Commerce, Economic Development Organizations, College and University Memberships
	Individual memberships
	Business Investor Opportunities
	Business Associate Membership
	Associate Business Investor Annual Membership
	President’s Circle - $5,000
	Associate Business Investors benefits, plus;
	Chairman’s Circle - $10,000
	President’s Circle benefits, plus;

	Colfax County 2024 Membership Dues Invoice

	Ports to Plains
	Ports to Plains Alliance 2024 Membership Dues
	Approved in open meeting this 12th day of December 2023.


	19. Resolution 2023-43 Dissolving Airport Advisory Committee.pdf
	18. Resolutiom 2023-42 Fees for Wirelesss Telecommunication Facilities.pdf
	17. Resolution 2023-41 Small Wireless Facility Design Guidelines.pdf
	16. Ordinance 2023-02 Regulating the Siting and Permitting of Wireless Telecom Facilities.pdf
	15. Holiday Schedule.pdf
	14. Memo..of Agreement Between Colfax County and The Greater Raton Economic Development.pdf
	13. Indigent December 2023.pdf
	SEPT.

	11. November 2023 Expenditures (View Bret likes).pdf
	10. Professional Services Contract, Concha Montano.pdf

